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WIOA Youth RFP 2021 
 Questions and Answers 

March 3, 2021 

A. Service Levels, Funding and Costs

1. How many individuals are proposed to be served annually?
Answer:
Generally, CWP’s WIOA Youth program serves approximately 200 new youth annually, but this
number is dependent on funding allocations.

2. Is there a minimum number of “students” that we are required to serve?
Answer:
No, the RFP does not establish a minimum.

3. Is food an allowable cost for participants?
Answer:
The cost of food is allowed only if the training requires food such as culinary training; however,
the culinary sector is not targeted in this RFP.

4. Can we then use the federal travel rate for food?
Answer:
The federal travel rate for meals is normally used for staff travel for conferences.  Overnight
travel for this program is not anticipated.

5. Can participant transportation (such as bus passes) be considered an allowable cost?
Answer:
Yes, participant transportation is considered an allowable and expected support service to be
provided and may include, but is not limited to, monthly or daily bus passes, and gas cards for
participants with cars.

6. If CWP receives additional CARES Act funds, will it be combined with WIOA dollars?
Answer:
We have not been notified that there will be additional CARES Act funds.  If there are additional
CARES Act funds and we receive a grant, the funds will most likely have a different timeframe
and different contractual/program requirements and will likely require a separate application
process and contracts.

7. If funding is substantially less this year, do you expect to keep the number of participants the
same or do you expect that the cost per participant will be less?
Answer:
Funding and allocations will be determined in May. It is more likely that the number of
participants will be reduced.
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8. Budget Forms are missing ability to budget for other components of allowable work experience 
as stated in TEGL 23-14 and 8-15, program expenditures on the work experience element can be 
more than just wages paid to youth in work experience.  Allowable expenditures beyond wages 
can include staff time spent identifying potential work experience opportunities, staff time 
working with employers to develop work experience, staff time spent with employers to ensure 
a successful work experience, staff time spent evaluating the work experience, participant work 
experience orientation sessions, classroom training or the required academic education 
component directly related to the work experience, and orientation for employers.  Will revised 
budget forms be published in order to budget these types of allowable work experience costs? 
Answer: 
CWP is aware of other allowable work experience costs. For purposes of this RFP, 25% of the 
budget must be comprised of participant wages, fringe benefits, and direct work experience 
supports. OJT reimbursements to employers also count toward the 25%. The budget form has 
been revised to include OJT as a work experience cost. 

 
B. Program Design and Services  
 

1. Is an apprenticeship considered work-based learning? 
Answer: 
Yes 

 
2. Where is the appropriate place to recruit participants? 

Answer:   
We expect proposers to plan recruitment based on their knowledge of the community. 

 
3. Is it expected that the proposal will include an employer in each identified industry sector? 

Answer: 
We expect to see employers identified that are connected to each industry sector identified in 
your proposal.  

 
4. Are only the four sectors listed in the RFP eligible, or can we propose another sector if we can 

demonstrate that it is in-demand? 
Answer: 
Applicants may apply for sectors not included in the RFP, but a strong argument must be made 
for the demand of other sectors.  Funds are limited so we are focusing on those sectors 
identified in the RFP, and proposals that target those sectors will be more competitive.    
 

5. Will CWP consider in-demand sectors other than health, manufacturing, info tech, and 
construction? 
Answer: 
Applicants may apply for sectors not included in the RFP, but a strong argument must be made 
for the demand of other sectors.  Funds are limited so we are focusing on those sectors 
identified in the RFP, and proposals that target those sectors will be more competitive.    
 

6. Can one industry be targeted in the proposal? 
Answer: 
Yes. 
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7. Can new employer partners be added during the contract period?  
Answer: 
Yes. 

 
8. As we work to establish partnerships with potential employers and partners, are we able to 

provide existing agreements at the time of proposal submission but add to and expand upon 
that after submittal or will we be limited only to those with whom we already have agreements 
at the time our proposal is submitted to CWP? 
Answer: 
Yes, new partnerships may be developed during the contract period. 
 

9. Are there any unallowable expenses? 
Answer: 
Yes, please refer to 2 CFR Chapter I, Chapter II, Part 200, et al., Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards for a description of 
allowable costs.  
 

10. Is this program geared towards in school or out-of-school youth? 
Answer: 
Out of school youth only. 

 
11. A question about tracking towards the $16/hour goal set forth in the RFP.  If we get youth a job 

at $15/hour does that completely miss the mark for the outcome, or is there a percentage 
tracking based on how close we get to the $16/hour goal? 
Answer: 
Participants placed at less than $16/hour count toward the entered employment rate.  Please 
note that the minimum wage at the end of PY 21-22 will be $14/hour. 

 
12. During the Bidder’s Conference, a slide was shared describing the core services that must be 

provided directly by the applicant/contractor.  The list included paid work activities.  Does this 
mean that we would be expected to provide paid work activities for students with our 
organization or that we would oversee and facilitate paid work activities with partners and/or 
potential employers? 
Answer: 
Yes, the contractor must provide paid work activities.  This may be facilitated through contracts 
with employers, with the cost of the participant wages reimbursed by the applicant/contractor, 
or through paid internships or work experience, with the applicant/contractor serving as the 
employer of record and paying the participant wages and fringe benefits directly. 
 

13. Will the following Certifications:  Community Health Worker, Residential Support Worker, 
Patient Advocate and Recovery Support Specialist Training be supported under the Allied Health 
field?   
Answer: 
Stackable credentials and certifications are allowable. Only certifications that meet the 
definition of recognized postsecondary credential in TEGL 10-16 Change 1 will count toward the 
credential attainment performance measure. 
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C. Current Program Information: 
 

1. Who is currently providing the service?  
Answer: 
CWP current WIOA Youth contractors for the period of July 2018 through June 2021 include: 

Career Resources, Inc. 
Forge City Works 
HRA of New Britain 
KRA Corporation 
Our Piece of the Pie 
OIC of New Britain 

 
2. Are the current providers meeting contractual outcomes?  Did all providers meet performance 

measures for PY18-19 and PY-19-20? Are current providers meeting performance for this 
program year so far?  
Answer: 
     WIOA Youth Performance 

Program Year PY18 PY19 PY20 – Q 1&2 
Performance Measure Achieved % of Goal Achieved % of Goal Achieved % of Goal 
Employment (Second Quarter after Exit) 72% 94% 77% 101% 74% 97% 
Employment (Fourth Quarter after Exit) 78% 107% 76% 104% 73% 100% 

Median Earnings 3,300 
(n/a 

baseline) 3,847 
(n/a 

baseline) 3,982 124% 
Credential Attainment Rate 76% 105% 80% 110% 83% 115% 

Measurable Skill Gains 77% 
(n/a 

baseline) 54% 
(n/a 

baseline) 34% 57% 
 

3. For PY19-20, were performance measures adjusted due to the COVID-19 pandemic?  
Answer: 
No. 

 
4. Was the 20% work-based learning spending goal for WIOA Youth met for the last two years and 

for the six months of this program year so far? 
Answer: 
This information is not necessary for proposal development. 
 

5. What was the dollar amount spent (per location) on supportive services and work experiences 
for the last two years and for the six months this program year so far? 
Answer: 
This information is not necessary for proposal development. 
 

D. Technical RFP Submission and Contract Requirements 
 

1. Do employer agreements need to be submitted with the proposal? 
Answer: 
Yes. 
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2. Do we need to supply employer agreements with every employer or just a template and 
selected employers if there are a number involved in the project? 
Answer: 
Employer agreements should be included from as many employers as possible so CWP may 
gauge the level of commitment from employer partners. 
 

3. How many hard copies of the RFP are required to be submitted? 
Answer: 
No paper copies of the RFP are to be submitted.  Only one (1) digital copy is required to be 
uploaded to the secure link sent out by CWP. Proposers must respond to CWP’s request confirm 
the primary contact person email address in order to receive the link. 

 
4. Would you prefer that all required attachments be submitted separately from the proposal? 

Answer: 
No.  Please follow the instructions in the RFP.  Connect all the pieces of the proposal into a 
single PDF in the order requested in the RFP on page 26.  The only attachments that are 
submitted separately are the audit/financial statement, budget and Microsoft Word version of 
the proposal narrative (the proposal narrative is also submitted within entire PDF version of the 
proposal). 
 

5. Where should applicants submit financial audits? Do applicants have to download their own 
audit or will they be emailed to Julie? 
Answer: 
Audits and/or Financial Statements are to be submitted electronically along with the proposals 
at the secure portal that will be provided for this RFP proposal submission.  We will send the link 
to the secure portal to the contact that you confirm for your organization.  Each proposer will 
receive a separate link to their own portal. 
 
Existing contractors that previously submitted their FY20 audits may indicate the submission 
date on Attachment D. 

 
6. Are there guidelines for the Reference/Performance History Report? 

Answer:  
Please read the instructions on the Reference/Performance History Report 

 
7. Are there going to be any major changes to the reference form? 

Answer: 
No. 

 
8. Will CWP consider 11:59 pm on March 29th or 12am on March 30th as a submission deadline? 

Answer: 
Proposals must be submitted on March 29, 2021. The secure link will expire at 12:00am on 
March 30, 2021. 
 

9. RFP states that Section 3. Program Design is to be a maximum of 15 pages, but are the following 
mandatory forms (specifically Attachments I and J) excluded from the page count?  (Section 2 
Organizational Capacity clearly states the forms are excluded.) 
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Answer: 
Forms and related attachments are excluded from page limits. 
 

10. Are small organizations still be required to submit separate organizational charts or can we 
submit one?   
Answer: 
If only organizational chart is submitted it should be clearly labeled as both high-level and 
program level. 
 

11. References:  If we do not have any subcontractors, should we solicit references from peers and 
partners who are knowledgeable about our work? 
Answer: 
References should be submitted by funders that have contracted with your organization, not by 
subcontractors.  
 

12. The questions from the RFP take up almost three of our 20 pages. May we shorten them if their 
meaning is clear? 
Answer: 
Yes. Questions may also be presented in 10-point font. 

 
E. Other 
 

1. How many awards does CWP anticipate making? 
Answer: 
There is no predetermined number of awards. 
 

2. Is the board willing to award the entire WIOA Youth contract to a single provider? Or is it the 
intention of the board to award the contract to multiple providers? 
Answer: 
There is no predetermined number of awards. 
 

3. Can you please share the list of attendees at the Bidder’s Conference? 
Answer: 
The list of Bidder’s Conference registrants is attached. 
 

4. Can you share a larger image of the WIOA Youth Career Logic Model shared in the Bidder’s 
Conference presentation? The image in the slide handout gets blurry when we enlarge it and we 
would like to better understand this model. 
Answer: 
More information can be found at https://youthreconnect.org/pathways/. Please see next page. 

https://youthreconnect.org/pathways/


 
 

 



WIOA Youth Bidders Conference Registrants  March 24, 2021

Organization Name Email Address Title

Capitol Region Education Co Adam Shaughnessy ashaughnessy@crec.org Grant Writer

Capitol Region Education Co Flor DeHoyos fdehoyos@crec.org Managing Director, Community Education

Capitol Region Education Co Kathy Randall krandall@crec.org Grants Coordinator

CCAT Alyce Stiles astiles@ccat.us Associate Director ‐ STEM Education

CCAT Cheryl Stephenson cstephenson@ccat.us Controller

CCAT Lynn Raicik lraicik@ccat.us Associate Director ‐ Workforce Pipeline Programs

CCAT Monica Perez mperez@ccat.us Workforce Development Specialist 

Community Renewal Team Willa Bloch blochw@crtct.org Planning Analyst

Compass  Jacquelyn Santiago santiago.jackie@compassyc.org CEO

Compass  Julia Corrigan  Juliacorrigan@compassyc.org VP of Programs 

CRI Maggie Koziol koziol@careerresources.org Director

CRI Markus Cherry cherry@careerresources.org Director

CRI Mary Murano murano@careerresources.org Grant Writer

Edison Learning Carly Fuller Carly.Fuller@edisonlearning.com  Vice President, Client Engagement & Strategic Alliances

Edison Learning Jay Gardner jay.gardner@edisonlearning.com RVP of Sales

Edison Learning Kathy Krapf kathy.krapf@edisonlearning.com RVP of Sales and Special Projects

Edison Learning Nick Carlucci nicholas.carlucci@edisonlearning.com Chief Business Development and Sr. Operations Officer

EDSI Heather Klucka  hklucka@edsisolutions.com Project Consultant 

Forge City Works Becky McGuigan Becky@forgecityworks.org Culinary Business Manager

Forge City Works Mary Cockram mary.j.cockram@gmail.com Grantwriter

Girls for Technonogy Anthony Barrett Anthony@girlsfortechnology.org Marketing & Development Officer 

Girls for Technonogy Ira Revels  Ira@girlsfortechnology.org Grants Manager 

Girls for Technonogy Sabrina Tucker‐Barrett Stucker@girlsfortechnology.org President 

Hartford Public Library Daniel Alexandre dalexandre@hplct.org Grants Manager

Hartford Public Library Homa Naficy hnaficy@hplct.org Executive Director of The American Place

HRA Leticia Mangual lmangual@hranbct.org Director of Employment and Training

HRA Marlo Greponne mgreponne@hranbct.org Executive Director

Justice Education Center Barbara Mazzzonna  barbaramazzonna@gmail.com Career and Technical Education Consultant

Justice Education Center Laura Whitacre laura@justiceeducationcenter.org  Deputy Director



WIOA Youth Bidders Conference Registrants  March 24, 2021

Organization Name Email Address Title

Justice Education Center Ron Schack ron_schack@yahoo.com Director of Financial Management and Research

Kennedy Center Fiona Jones fjones@kennedyctr.org Supervisor of Career Development Services

Kennedy Center Jeanette Muñoz Allam jallam@kennedyctr.org Director of Grants and Business Development

KRA Corporation Anthony Harrington aharrington@kra.com Operations Manager

KRA Corporation Patrick Boxall pboxall@kra.com Vice President & COO

OIC Letungia Hill tanyahill1031@hotmail.com Fiscal manager

OIC Paulette Fox pfox_oic@yahoo.com Executive Director

OPP Hector Rivera Hector.Rivera@opp.org COO

OPP Sam Decarlo Sam.Decarlo@opp.org Director Workforce Development

OPP Sara Houldcroft sara.houldcroft@opp.org Senior Grants Writer

Town of Bloomfield Angelica Thompson athompson@bloomfieldct.org Youth Services Coordinator

Town of Bloomfield Camilla Hillian chillian@bloomfieldct.org Director of Social & Youth Services

U‐Do Services Clifff Marrett  marrettc23@yahoo.com Co Founder 

U‐Do Services Elijah Oliver  elijahaoliver@gmail.com Co Founder 


